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Report on the Financial Statements 

Independent Auditor's Report 

. 18435 HIGHWAY 22, STE. 2 
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ALBANY, IA 70711 
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the busi ness-type activities of the Livingston Parish 
Sewer District, a component unit of the Livingston Parish Council , as of and for the year ended December 31 , 
2022, and the related notes to the financia l statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic finan cial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fair ly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the business-type activities of the Livingston Parish Sewer District, as of December 31, 2022. 
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance wi th 
accounting principles genera lly accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Aud it of the Fi nancial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Liv ingston Parish Sewer District, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities; in accordance 
with the relevant ethical req uirements re lating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our aud it opinion. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financi al 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Livingston Parish Sewer District's ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently 
known information that may raise substantial doubt sho rtly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an aud itor's report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee 
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that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the 
financial statements. 

In perfonning an audit 111 accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Livingston Parish Sewer District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Livingston Parish Sewer District ' s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we 
identified during the audit. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the District's December 31, 2021 financial statements, and we expressed an 
unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements in their report dated June 30, 2022. In our opinion, the 
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended December 3 1, 2021, is 
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted 111 the United States of America requtre that the management' s 
discussion and analysis on pages 6 - 12 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financi al 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance wi th 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management' s response to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained duri ng 
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions of the fin ancial statements that collectively 
comprise the District's basic financial statements. The information included in the accompanying schedules listed 
as Other Supplementary Information in the table of contents related to the 2022 financial statements, for the year 
ended December 31, 2022 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements . The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underly ing accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards general ly accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information included in the accompanyi ng schedules listed as 
Other Supplementary Information in the table of contents related to the 2022 fi nancial statements is fairly stated 
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards , we have also issued our report dated June 21 , 2023 on our 
consideration of the Livingston Parish Sewer District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters . 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District 's internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Livingston Parish Sewer District's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Hebert Johnson & Associates, Inc. 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 
Albany, Louisiana 
June 21 , 2023 
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Required Supplementary Information 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
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Introduction 

Livingston Parish Sewer District 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

The Livingston Parish Sewer District (the District) is pleased to present its Annual Financial Statements 
developed in compliance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements - Management's Discussion and Analysis - For State and Local Governments (GASB 34), as 
amended. The amendment of GASB 34, including the adoption of GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting 
of Deferred Ouljlows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and applicable standards 
more fully described in the financial statement footnotes as Footnote I- Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies. 

The District's discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financi al 
issues, (b) provide an overview of the District's financial activity, (c) identify changes in the District's financia l 
position, (d) identify any significant variations from the District' s financial plan, and (e) identify individual fund 
issues or concerns. 

Since Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focu s on the current year' s activities, 
resulting changes, and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the District's financial statements 
in this report. 

Financial Highlights 

• At December 31, 2022, total assets and deferred outflows were $90,753,131 , and exceeded liabilities in 
the amount of $8,525,221 (i .e., net position). Of the total net position, $3,907,493 was unrestricted and 
available to support short-term operations. The net investment in capital assets totaled $488,385. The 
remaining balance was restricted for capital projects activity and debt service $4, 129,343 . 

• The long-term portion of bonds payable decreased by $858,140 at December 31, 2022 compared to an 
increase of $51,930,126, composed of principal payments at the end of the prior fiscal period as compared 
to debt issuance in 2021 . 

• For the year ended December 31 , 2022, operating revenues increased to $7,995,864 as compared to 
$6,326,240 for the fiscal year ending December 31 , 2021 . 

• The District's operating expenses, other than depreciation expense, increased by $803,474 to $4,352,632 
for fiscal year ending December 31, 2022 as compared to $3 ,549, 158 for the prior fiscal year. The 
increase is due primarily to increases in repairs and maintenance of $397,702, supplies of $14,730, 
salaries and wages/group insurance of $50,082, fuel of $47,412, insurance of $50,411, and utilities of 
$173,496. 

* The District showed a increase in net position of $47 1,678 for the fiscal year ended December 
31, 2022, as compared to a decrease of $413,477 for the fiscal year ending December 31 , 2021. 
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Livingston Parish Sewer District 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

Overview of the Annual Financial Report 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the basic financial statem ents and 
supplementary information. The MD&A presents an overview of management's examination and analysis of 
Livingston Parish Sewer District 's financial condition and performance. 

The financial statements report information on the District using full accrual accounting methods similar to those 
used in the private business sector. Financial statements include the Statement of Net Position, Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows. The Statement of Net 
Position provides information about the nature and amount of the District's resources and obligations at year-end, 
and provides a basis for evaluating the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial 
flexibility of the District. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, accounts for the revenues and expenses for 
the fiscal year, and provides information on how net position changed during the year. This statement measures 
the success of the District's operations in a fonnat that can be used to determine if the District has recovered its 
costs through user fees and other charges. 

The Statement of Cash F lows reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from 
operations, investing, and financ ing activ ities, and provides information on the source of cash receipts, what the 
cash was used for, and the total change in cash for the reporting period . 

The notes to the financia l statements provide required disclosures essential to an understanding of the financi al 
statements. The notes present information about the District's accounting policies, significant account balances 
and activities, commitments, contingencies, and subsequent events, if any. Supplementary information includes a 
comparative budget schedule, key information schedules on operation of the District, and if applicable, schedules 
detailing audit findings and management response, as well as required reports for Single Audit disclosure, if 
applicable. 

Financial Analysis 

The purpose of financial analysis is to help determine whether Livingston Parish Sewer District is better off as a 
result of the current year's activities. In this analysis, data from two of the basic financial statements, the 
Statement of Net Position, and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, are presented 
below in condensed format. These statements report the net position, the difference between assets and liabilities, 
and the change in net position, which provides information for indicating the financia l condition of the District. 
Following these statements is a separate schedule summarizing and analyzing budget changes for the current 
fi scal year. 
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Livingston Parish Sewer District 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 
2022 and 2021 

Dollar Percentage 
2022 2021 Change Change 

(Restated) 
Assets: 

Current and Other Assets $ 56,989,626 $ 70,708,430 $ (13,718,804) -19% 
Capital Assets 33,517,118 31,924,302 1,592,816 5% 

Total Assets 90,506,744 102,632,732 (12, 125,988) -12% 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Refunding of Debt 41,696 43 ,590 (1 ,894) -4% 
Asset Retirement Obligation - Sewer 204,69 1 216,732 (12,041 ) -6% 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 246,387 260,322 (1 ,894) -1 % 

Liabilities: 
Long-Term Debt Outstanding 79,936,082 80,794,222 (858,140) -1% 
Other Liabi lities 2,291 ,828 14,045,289 (1 1,753 ,461 ) -84% 

Total Liabilities 82,227,910 94,839,511 (12,611 ,601 ) -1 3% 

Net Position: 
Net investment in Capital Assets 488,385 (72,660) 561 ,045 -772% 
Restricted for Capital Activity and Debt Service 4,129,343 4,481 ,632 (352,289) -8% 
Unrestricted 3,907,493 3,644,571 262,922 7% 

Total Net Position $ 8,525,22 1 $ 8,053,543 $ 471 ,678 6% 

The major component of change for "Current and Other Assets" is a decrease in restricted cash of$ I 3,7 18,804 
which was held cash used for debt reduction in 2022. 

"Capital Assets" increased by $1 ,592,816, reflecting primarily asset additions of $8,362,900 and a decrease in 
construction in progress of $5,500,748(southern expansion assets placed in service) less the depreciation 
recorded on capital assets of $1 ,269,336 for the fiscal year ending December 31 , 2022. Capital asset increases 
included $8,236,335 in sewer system improvements, and $126,565 for various equipment and machinery. 

"Total Net Position" (total assets less total liabilities) increased $471,678 for the fiscal year ended December 31. 
2021 , compared to an decrease of $413,477 for the fisca l year ending December 3 1, 2021. 
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Livingston Parish Sewer District 

Managem ent's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Year ended Year ended 
December 31, December 31, Dollar Percentage 

2022 2021 Change Change 
(Restated) 

Revenues: 

Operating Revenues $ 7,995,864 $ 6,326,240 $ 1,669,624 5% 

Nonoperating Revenues 57 1,372 938,111 (366,739) -92% 

Total Revenues 8,567,236 7,264,351 1,302,885 -12% 

Expenses: 

Depreciation Expense 1,269,336 I, 154,060 11 5,276 9% 

Other Operating Expense 4,352,632 3,549,158 803 ,474 6% 

Nonoperating Expense 2,473,590 2,974,610 (501,020) -18% 

Total Expenses 8,095,558 7,677,828 417,730 1% 

Changes in Net Position 471 ,678 (413,477) 885, 155 -69% 

Net Position, Beginning 8,053 ,543 8,529,23 1 (475,688) 16% 

Prior Period Adjustments (Note 15) (62,21 1) 

Total Adjusted Net Position, Beginning 8,053,543 8,467,020 

Ending Net Position $ 8,525,221 $ 8,053 ,543 $ 409,467 4% 

While the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position of net position, the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provides answers to the nature and scope of these changes. 
The above table gives an indication of how L ivingston Parish Sewer D istrict is being conservatively managed. 

Total "Operating Revenues" (includi ng sewer sales and reven ues related to prov iding sewer maintenance fees and 
impact fees) increased by $1 ,669,624 primarily due to an increase of $191,243 in impact fees, $18,597 in permits­
inspection fees , and $1 ,474,555 in sewer fees. Non-operating revenues increased $42,821 net from decrease of 
$512,160 in FEMA reimbursements and decrease of $409,560 in storm insurance proceeds during 202 1, along 
with an increase of $554,9813 in interest income (main ly from earn ings on new debt for expansion). 

Total "Operating Expenses", other than deprec iation expense, increased by $803,474 to $4,352,632 for fi sca l year 
ending December 31 , 2022 as compared to $3,549, l 58 for the prior fisca l year. The increase is due primarily to 
increases in repairs and maintenance of $397,702, suppl ies of $14,730, salaries and wages-group insurance of 
$50,082, fuel of $47,412, insurance of $50,41 1 and utilities of $ 173,496. 

Total "Non-operating Expense" decreased by $50 1,020. Thi s net decrease was due primarily to 2021 bond 
issuance cost of $1,333,196 that was not present in 2022, a decrease in storm expenses of $263,338, and an 
increase in interest expense $1,095,514 due to a ful I year of calculation on the new expansion debt. 

The District showed an increase of $478,678 (change in net position) for the fiscal year ending December 31 , 
2022, as compared to a decrease of $413,477 fo r the fiscal year ending December 3 I, 2021. 
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Budgetary Highlights 

Livingston Parish Sewer District 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

Liv ingston Parish Sewer District adopts an annual operating budget to enhance management and operation of the 
District. This budget prov ides an estimate for the current fi scal year of the proposed expenditures and the 
revenues that will finance the operations of the District. The operating budget is adopted before the end of the 
prior fi sca l year, and is amended by the Board of Commiss ioners after review of monthly budget-to-actual 
fi nancial reports. A summary of the approved budget is presented below in a condensed format summarizing 
major revenue and expenditure categories, and is fo llowed by analys is of signi fica nt var iat ions between budget 
and actual amounts. Although not presented as a part of the basic fin ancial statements, a more detailed schedu le 
is a lso presented in "Schedu le I - Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Pos ition-B udget (GAAP 
Basis) and Actual", as supplementary information, fo llowing the footnotes to the fi nancial statements. 

Budget vs. Actual - Fiscal Year ended December 31 , 2022 

Budget Year Actual Year 
ended ended Favorable 

December 31 , December 31, (Unfavorable) 
2022 2022 Variance 

Revenues: 

Operating Revenues $ 7,61 4,500 $ 7,995 ,864 $ 381,364 

Nonoperating Revenues 386,200 571 ,3 72 185, 172 

Total Revenues 8,000,700 8,567,236 566,536 

Expenses: 

Depreciation Expense 1,450,000 1,269,336 180,664 
Other Operating Expense 4,206,700 4,352,632 (145,932) 

Nonoperating Expense 1,515,000 2,473 ,590 (958,590) 
Total Expenses 7,17 1,700 8,095 ,55 8 (923 ,858) 
Change in Net Posit ion $ 829,000 $ 47 1,678 $ (357,322) 

Actual operating revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by approximately 5% or $ 381,364, and actual operating 
expenses were under their projection of expenses by approximate ly 3 .4% or $145,932 for a favorable variance. 
Non-Operating Revenues were over budget with a favorable variance by $ 185, 172 and Non-Operating Expenses 
exceeded budget by $958,590 (due to interest accrual on new debt). 

Other Significant Trends and Account Changes 

Included withi n thi s section is fi rst a listing and analysis of general trends and operating data affecting the 
operation of the District. Thi s is fo llowed by an analys is of any significant account changes, not inc luded with in 
other sections of the Management's Discussion and Analys is. 
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General Operating Data 

Customers 

Total Customers 

Livingston Parish Sewer District 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

December 31, 2022 
15, 139 

15,139 

December 31, 
2021 

9,326 

9,326 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

5,813 

5,81 3 

At the end of the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022, Livingston Parish Sewer District had $33,517,118 (net of 
accumulated depreciation) recorded in capita l assets. This includes sewer line systems and improvements, land, 
buildings, machinery and equipment, and vehicles used to operate the sewerage system . The changes in capital 
assets are presented in the table below. 

December December Increase Percentage 
31 ,2022 31,2021 (Decrease) Change 

Capital Assets 

Buildings $ 580,858 $ 580,858 $ 0% 

Machinery & Equipment 2,273,687 2,147, 122 126,565 23% 

Uti I ity System 42,112,424 33,876,089 8,236,335 1% 

Vehicles 807,966 807,966 126% 

Subtotal 45,774,935 37,412,035 8,362,900 3% 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (14,434,762) ( 13, I 65,426) (1,269,336) -10% 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 31,340, l 73 24,246,609 7,093 ,564 0% 

Land 193,566 193 ,566 0% 

Construction in Progress 1,983,379 7,484,127 (5 ,500,748) 214% 

Net Capital Assets $ 33,517,118 $ 3 I ,924,302 $ 1,592,816 18% 

"Capital Assets" increased by $1,592,816, reflecting primarily asset additions of $8,362,900 of assets placed in 
service less the depreciation recorded on capital assets of $1,269,336 for the fiscal year ending December 3 I, 
2022. Capital asset increases included $8,236,335 in sewer system improvements, $126,565 for various 
equipment and machinery, and a decrease of $5,500,748 from construction in progress moved to depreciable 
system improvements relating to the southern expansion project treatment plant activation. 

Long-Term Offerings 

The primary source of long-term financing for Livingston Parish Sewer District are bonds issued through private 
lenders. A new issuance of refinanced Refunding Bonds was accomplished in May of 2021 for favorable interest 
rates and the retirement of previous bonds. The prior year's new $50,000,000 expansion bond was issued in 
December, 2021 in order to hand le the immediate growth in the northern and southern reg ions. Interest expense is 
being accrued until the phases of improvements are completed. The District covenants that net income will be 
maintained at a sufficient level to cover all operating and maintenance expenses and to cover bond requirements 
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Livingston Parish Sewer District 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

including debt installments and bond deposit requ irements agreed to with the issuance of revenue bond s fo r the 
District. 

The reader shou ld refer to Footnote 7 - Flow of Funds Restrictions on Use and Footnote 13 - Other Commitments 
and Contingencies fo r a discussion of the D istrict 's com pl iance to bond covenants . The District for the fi scal year 
ending December 3 1, 202 1 complied with bond covenants requ iring a 125% ratio of Net Reven ues to bond 
depos it requirements. 

Future Economic Plans 

The Livi ngston Parish Sewer District' s management approach is conservative. The Board active ly moni tors 
revenues and expenses and evaluates the costs of proposed expansion proj ects. The Board ' s emphas is is on 
providing services at the lowest cost availab le and to active ly pursue projects that resul t in better service for 
customers. Future expansions in the eastern and northern reg ions of the District along wi th cont inued expansion 
in the southern region will be included in serv ing new customers in these areas in the next fi ve years. New 
expansion plans in the Springfi eld area (eastern sector) along with grant funding opportunities to provide many 
new customers compliant sewer serv ices in new areas is the goa l. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Livingston Parish Sewer District's finances and 
to demonstrate the District' s accountabil ity. If you have questions regard ing this report or need additional 
informatio n, contact the District' s Admi nistrative Secretary, Randy Smith at 277 East Ra il road Avenue, Suite A, 
Denham Springs, LA 70726, at (225) 664-7579. 
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Liv ingston Paris h Sewer District 
S tatement of Net Position 

A s of December 31, 2022 

Statement A 

(with 2021 s ummarized comparative information) 

Assets 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Unrestricted 
Receivables, Net : 

Accounts 
Due From Other Governments 
Prepaid Insurance 

Total Current Assets 

Restricted Assets: 
Restricted Cash and Cash Eq u iva lents 

Total Restricted Assets 

Property, Plant, and Equipment 
Land 
Construction in Progress 
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 

Total Property, Plant, and E quipment 

Other Assets 
Prepaid Bond Insurance Costs, Net 
Meter Deposits 

Total Other Assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflow s o f Resources 
Asset Retirem ent Obligat ion - Sew er Plan ts 
Refunding of Debt 

T otal Defe rred O utflows of Resou rces 

Lia bilit ies 
Current Liabilities (Payable From Current Assets): 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Vacation 
Other Accrued Payables 
Asset Retirement Obligation Liability 

Total Current Liabilities (Payable From Current Assets) 

Current Liabilities (Payab le From Restricted Assets): 
Construction Payab le 
Retainage Payable 
Bond Issuance Payab le 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Revenue Bonds Payable 

T ota l Current Liabilities (Payable From Res tricted Assets) 

Long Term Liabilities: 
Bonds Payable 

Total Long Term Liabi lities 

Tota l Liabilities 

Ne t Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted for: 

Capital Projects and Debt Service 
Unrestri cted 

Total N et Position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

2022 

3 .288,924 $ 

82 5,214 
791 ,205 

53, 12 1 
4 ,958.464 

51 ,595,898 
51 .595,898 

193.566 
1.976,786 

31 ,346,766 
33,517, 118 

432,995 
2 ,269 

435.264 

90,506,744 

204,691 
41 ,696 

246,387 

2 89,066 
43,044 
21 ,275 

353 ,385 

306,698 
64,526 

768.219 
799,000 

1,938,443 

79,936,082 
79,936,082 

82,227,910 

488,385 

2021 
(Restated) 

2,405,798 

60 7,321 
808.752 

3 7.896 
3,859 .767 

66,395.282 
66,395.282 

193 ,566 
7.484, 127 

24.246,609 
3 1,924,302 

4 51 , 11 2 
2,269 

4 53.3 81 

102,632,732 

2 16.732 
43,590 

260,322 

117.856 
40.360 
14,673 
90,81 3 

263 ,702 

327.899 

11,373 
4 84.3 15 

12,958,000 
13,781 .587 

80.794,222 
80,794,222 

94,839,511 

(72,660) 

4 , 129,343 4,48 1.632 
3,907,493 3.644,5 71 

8,525,221 $ ====8=,0=5=3=,5=4=3= 



Statement B 
L ivingston Parish Sewet· District 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

Operating Revenues 
Sewer Fees 
Permits & Inspection Fees 
User & Hook-up Fees 
Jmpact Fees 
Other Operating Income 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Salaries and Wages 
Payro ll Taxes & Group Insurance 
Per Diem 
Amortization-Prepaid Bond Insurance 
Bad Debts 
Depreciation 
Fue l/Oil-Trucks 
Insurance 
Licenses & Perm its 
Office Expense 
Other 
Professional Fees 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Suppl ies 
Te lephone 
Uniform Expense 
Utilities 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest Income 
FEMA Reimbursement 
Interest Expense 
Bond Issuance Cost 
Insurance Proceeds 
Storm Expense 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Change in Net Position 

Total Net Position, Beginning 
Prior Period Adjustment (Note 15) 

Total Adjusted Net Position, Beginning 
Total Net Position, Ending 

$ 

$ 

The accompanyi ng notes are an integral part of thi s statement. 
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2022 

6,512, 11 2 $ 

71 ,837 
188,354 

1, 198,0 17 
25,544 

7,995 ,864 

686,965 
295,305 

6, 100 
18, 117 
8,026 

1,269,336 
115,194 
204,761 

24,71 2 
4,340 

208,724 
128,202 

1,679,063 
264,856 

36,620 
19,946 

651 ,701 
5,621 ,968 

2,373,896 

558,71 4 
12,658 

(2,3 19,756) 

(153 ,834) 
(1 ,902,2 18) 

471.678 

8,053 ,543 

2021 
(Restated) 

5,037,557 
53,240 

197,829 
1,006,774 

30,840 
6,326,240 

688,014 
244,174 

5,800 
12, 185 
13,403 

I, 154,060 
67,782 

154,350 
21,837 

6,697 
134,146 
147,923 

1,281,361 
250,126 

27,256 
15,899 

478,205 
4,703,2 18 

1,623,022 

3,733 
524,818 

( I ,224,242) 
( 1,333. I 96) 

409,560 
(417,172) 

(2,036,499) 

(413,477) 

8,529,231 
(62,21 I ) 

8,053 ,543 8,467,020 
8,525,22 1 $ 8,053,543 

======== 



Statement C 
Livingston Parish Sewer District 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund Type 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

2022 2021 
Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Received From Customers $ 7,752,427 $ 5,717,027 
Other Receipts 25,544 30,840 
Payments for Operations (3,275,028) (2,280,848) 
Payments to Employees (972,984) (916,197) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 3,529,959 2,550,822 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 
(Payments for) Storm and Flood Expenses (153,834) (417,172) 
Proceeds from Insurance Reimbursements 409,560 
Proceeds from Grants 30,204 80,01 9 
(Payments for) Livingston Parish Council Debt Obligation (531 ) 
(Payments for) Capital Acquisitions (2,818,826) (1,769,103) 
Principal Proceeds from (Repayments for) Long Term Debt (13,017,140) 64,207,126 
Deferred Outflows for Refunding 1,894 1,895 
Debt Issue Cost Payments (11,373) (1 ,321,823) 
Prepaid Bond Insurance Payments (236,757) 
Interest Payments for Long Term Debt (2,035,856) (1 ,068,945) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities (18,004,931) 59,884,269 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Receipt oflnterest 558,714 3,733 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 558,714 3,733 

Net Cash Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (13,916,258) 62,438,824 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 68,801,080 6,362,256 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 54,884,822 $ 68,801,080 

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to the Statement of Net 
Position: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Unrestricted $ 3,288,924 $ 2,405,798 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted 51 ,595,898 66,395,282 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 54,884,822 $ 68,801,080 

(Continued) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund Type 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) 
by Operating Activities 

Operating Income (Loss) $ 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided 
by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation and Amortization 
(Increase) decrease in Accounts Receivable 
(Increase) decrease in Prepaid Insurance 
(Increase) decrease in Other Assets 
(Increase) decrease in Due (to) and from Other Governments 
Increase (decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Increase (decrease) in Accrued Expenses 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 

(Concluded) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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2022 

2,373,896 $ 

1,299,494 
(217,893) 
(15,225) 

171 ,214 
(81 ,527) 

3,529,959 $ 

(Continued) 

2021 

1,623,022 

1,178,286 
(578,373) 
349,702 

(37,806) 
15,99 1 

2,550,822 
===== 



Basic Financial Statements 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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Introduction 

Living ton Parish Se\, er District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

Livingston Parish Sewer District (the District) was created by the Livingston Parish Police Jury (now the 
Livingston Parish Council) on October 26, 1974, pursuant to the provi sions of R.S. 33:3811, et, seq. , of the 
Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950. 

On November 8, 20 16, voters authorized the merger of Livingston Parish Sewer District Number One into 
Livingston Parish Sewer District Number Two. The proposition stated that in order to consolidate operations, 
achieve maximum budget efficiency and reduce the costs of operations, that the two Districts be granted the 
authority to merge in accordance with Article VI , Section 16 of the Constitution of the State of Louisiana of 1974. 
On December 15, 2016, the District, after consultation with legal services and the Loui siana Legislative Auditor, 
approved a motion to approve the merger, effective January 1, 2017. On February 9, 20 18, the Livingston Parish 
Council amended the legal name of Livingston Parish Sewer District Number Two to Livingston Parish Sewer 
District. 

The District is located in and around Denham Springs, Louisiana. The purpose of the District is to provide 
sanitation services to customers within the boundaries of the District. The board is composed of a maximum of 
five board members appointed by the Livingston Parish Council. Board members are compensated for meeting 
attendance at the rate of $100 per meeting. 

Livingston Parish Sewer District was thus created and constitutes a public corporation and political subdivision of 
the State of Louisiana, and has all the power and privileges granted by the Constitution and statutes of this state to 
such subdiv ision, including the authority to incur debt, to issue bonds, and to levy taxes and assessments. 

In conformance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Statement 61 , the District is a component unit 
of the Liv ingston Parish Council , the governing body of the Parish. The accompanying financial statements 
present information only on the fund maintained by the District and do not present information on the Council and 
the general government services provided by the governmental unit. 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The District's financial statements are prepared on the full accrual basis in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. The District applies all Government Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) pronouncements as described in the following paragraphs. 

These financial statements are presented in conformance with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements, Management's Discussion and Analysis, for State and Local Governments. Statement No. 34 
established standards for financial reporting, with presentation requirements originally including a statement of 
net assets (or balance sheet), a statement of activities and changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows. 
The definition and composition of these statements, as originally defined in GASB Statement No. 34, are as 
amended by GASB Statements included in the following paragraphs. The District has also adopted the provisions 
of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions , that requi re 
capital contributions to the District be presented as a change in net position. 

GASB Statement No. 63 , Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Net Position, effective for financial statement periods ending after December 15, 201 2, prov ides guidance for 
reporting deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a statement of financial 
position and related disclosures. Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of Financial Statements, introd uced and 
defined Deferred Out.flows of Resources as a consumption of net assets by the government that is applicable to a 
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Livingston Parish Sewt~r District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

future reporting period, and Deferred Inflows of Resources as an acquisition of net assets by the government that 
is applicable to a future reporting period, respectively. Previous financial reporting standards do not incl ude 
guidance for reporting those financial statement elements, which are distinct from assets and liabilities. GASB 
Concepts Statement 4 identifies net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of 
financial position. This Statement amends the net asset reporting requirements in Statement No. 34, Basic 
Financial Statements- and Management 's Discussion and Analysis- for State and Local Governments, and other 
pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the 
definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net position, 
rather than net assets. The definition and reporting of net position is further described in Footnote 1, Section .J -
Net Position. As required by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the District implemented 
GASB Statement No. 63 during the year ending December 31 , 2012. The District did not have any deferred 
inflows at December 3 1, 2022. At December 3 I, 2022 the District has deferred outflows for debt refunding of 
$41 ,696 and for an asset retirement obligation for sewer packing plants of $204,691 . 

The District has also adopted GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This 
Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of 
resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and 
recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets 
and liabilities. The application of this standard to long-term debt offerings of the District is more fu lly descri bed 
in Footnote 1, Section I - Long-Term Debt Obligations. 

Al I activities of the District are accounted for in a single proprietary (enterprise) fund . Proprietary fund s are used 
to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner simi lar to private business enterpri se, wher 
the intent of the governing authority is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing services on a 
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. Under the accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred. 

The term measurement focus denotes what is being measured and reported in the District' s operating statement. 
Financial operations of the District are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focu s. 
With this measurement focus, all of the assets and liabilities, available to the District for the purpose of providi ng 
goods and services to the public, are included on the balance sheet. The activity statement includes all costs of 
providing goods and services during the period. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing serv ices and producing and delivering goods in connection wi th a 
proprietary fund ' s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the proprietary fund s are 
user charges for the services provided by the enterprise funds. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and 
internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capita l 
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District ' s policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

B. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, and money market accounts. Cash 
equivalents include amounts in time deposits and those investments with original maturities of 90 days or less. 
Under state law, the District may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand depos its, money 
market accounts, or time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law or any other state of the United 
States, or under the laws of the United States. 
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C. Investments 

Livingston Parish Se,; 1<!r District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended Decem ber 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

Investments for the District are reported at fair market value. Investments are limited by Louisiana Revised 
Statute (R.S.) 33:2955 and the District's investment pol icy. If the original maturities of investments exceed 90 
days, they are classified as investments; however, if the origina l maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified 
as cash equivalents. 

interest Rate Risk: The District does not have a fonnal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a 
means of managing its exposure to fair value arising from increasing interest rates. 

As of December 31, 2022 the District had no investments. 

D. Inventories 

Purchases of various operating supplies are regarded as expenditures at the time purchased, and inventories of 
such supplies (if any) are not recorded as assets at the c lose of the fiscal year. Inventories are valued at cost using 
the first-in , first-out method . As of December 31, 2022, the District had no significant inventory. 

E. Prepaid Items 

Payments made to vendors that will benefit periods beyond the end of the current calendar year are recorded as 
prepaid items. Prepaid items consist of prepaid insurance premiums. 

F. Restricted Assets 

Certain proceeds of the enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, 
are classified as restricted assets because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. Also impact fees 
received for expansion are restricted by enab ling legis lation. 

G. Capital Assets 

Capital assets of the District are defined by the District as assets with an in itial , individual cost of more than $500, 
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Capital assets are recorded at either historical cost or estimated 
historical cost. Donated assets, including sewer systems donated for continued maintenance by the District, are 
valued at their estimated fa ir market value on the date donated. Depreciation of all exhaustible fi xed assets is 
charged as an expense against operat ions. Deprec iation is computed using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. 
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Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended Decem ber 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 

Description 
Infrastructure Assets 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Building Improvements 

Furniture and Fixtures 

Vehicles 

Equipment 

Estimated Lives 
40 Years 

40 Years 

40 Years 

5 - 10 Years 

5 Years 

3 - 10 Years 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset 
lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Effective for fiscal 
year 2019, the District no longer capi talizes interest during the construction period on a prospective basis as per 
GASS Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period. 

H. Compensated Absences 

Full time employees of the District, who were emp loyed by Emp loyer sequent to June 30th of the previous year 
and one week prior to January 1st of the current year shall receive within the current calendar year a vacation of 
one week with pay. Em ployees who were employed by Emp loyer prior to July 1st of the preceding year sha ll 
receive within the current calendar year a vacation of two weeks with pay. Employees with seven years or more 
will be granted a total of three weeks with pay within the current calendar year. Employees with twe lve years or 
more of service will be granted a total of four weeks with pay within the current calendar year. Employees wi th 
eighteen years or more of service wi ll be granted a total of five weeks with pay within the current ca lendar year. 
Em ployees wi th twenty-five years or more of service will be granted a total of s ix weeks with pay within the 
current calendar year. Vacation leave may be carried over to the following year up to a maximum of 384 hours. In 
the event that work-related problems would not allow a person to take vacations, the employee may be pa id 
compensation for up to the amount earned that fiscal year on approval by the Board. Upon separation , after six 
months of employment, each employee shall be paid any earned vacation accumulated . 

Sick leave is earned after the first six months of full employment. Employees earn 80 hours of six leave per year 
based on a twelve-month year. Unused sick leave may not be carried over to the following year. No cash 
payments shall be made for accumulated sick leave. 

I. Long-Term Debt Obligations 

Long-term liabilities are recognized within the Enterprise Fund. Bond premiums and discounts are amortized over 
the li fe of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond 
premium or discount. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are now 
expended in the period incurred under GASB 65. 

The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, and 
with the implementation of GASS 65 , the recogn ition of bond-related costs, includi ng the costs related to 
issuance and refunding of debt, are revised. This standard was intended to compliment GASS Statement No. 63 , 
Financial Reporting of Deferred Ouiflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position . Bond 
issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actua l debt proceeds received, are now expended in the period 
incurred under GASB 65. 
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Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

GASB Statement 23, as amended, establishes accounting and financial reporting for current refundings and 
advance refu ndings resu lting in defeasance of debt. Refundings involve the issuance of new debt whose proceeds 
are used to repay previously issued ("old") debt. The new debt proceeds may be used to repay the old debt 
immediately (a current refunding); or the new debt proceeds may be placed with an escrow agent and invested 
until they are used to pay principal and interest on the old debt at a future time (an advance refunding). As 
described in paragraphs 3 and 4 of GASB Statement No. 7, Advance Refundings Resulting in Dejeasance of Debt, 
an advance refunding may result in the in-substance defeasance of the old debt provided that certain criteria are 
met. 

For current refundings and advance refund ings resulting in defeasance of debt reported by governmental 
activities, business-type activities, and proprietary funds , the difference between the reacquisition price and the 
net carrying amount of the old debt should be reported as a deferred outflow of resources or a deferred inflow of 
resources and recognized as a component of interest expense in a systematic and rational manner over the 
remaining life of the old debt or the I ife of the new debt, whichever is sh011er. 

Paragraph 187 of GASB Statement 62 estab lishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for debt 
issuance costs. Paragraph 12 of Statement 7 indicates that debt issuance costs include all costs incurred to issue 
the bonds, including but not limited to insurance costs (net of rebates from the old debt, if any), financing costs 
(such as rating agency fees) , and other related costs (such as printing, legal, administrative, and trustee expenses). 
Debt issuance costs, except any portion related to prepaid insurance costs, should be recogn ized as an expense in 
the period incurred. Prepaid insurance costs should be reported as an asset and recognized as an expense in a 
systematic and rational manner over the duration of the related debt. 

J. Net Position 

GASB Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements, Management's Discussion and Analysis, for State and Local 
Governments, required reclassification of net assets into three separate components. GASB Statement No. 63 , 
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, revised 
the tenninology by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the 
definitions of the required components of the res idua l measure and by renaming that measure as net posi tion, 
rather than net assets. GASB Statement No. 63 requires the following components of net position: 

• Net Investment in Capital Assets Component of Net Position - The net investment in capital assets component 
of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement 
of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt also shou ld be included in this 
component of net position. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds or deferred inflows of resources 
at the end of the reporting period, the portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources attributable to the 
unspent amount should not be inc luded in the calculation of net investment in capital assets . Instead, that portion 
of the debt or deferred inflows of resources should be included in the same net position component (restricted or 
unrestricted) as the unspent amount. 

• Restricted Component of Net Position - The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets 
reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. Genera lly, a liability relates to 
restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also results in the recognition of a liability or if the 
liabi lity will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported . 
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Livingston Parish S<:wer District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31 , 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

• Unrestricted Component of Net Position - The unrestricted component of net posit ion is the net amount of the 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not incl uded in the 
determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position. 

K. Comparative Data/Reclassifications 

The fi nancial statements are presented with certain prior year summarized information . Such information does not 
include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with genera lly accepted accounting principles. 
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunct ion with the District's financ ia l statements for the year 
ended December 3 I, 202 1, from which the summ arized informat ion was derived . 

Certai n amounts presented in the prior year data have been rec lassified in order to be consistent wi th the current 
year's presentation. All prior period adjustments, if any, recorded in the current period have been reflected in prior 
period data presented wherever possible. 

L. Extraordinary and Special Items 

Extraordinary items are transact ions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence. 
Special items are transactions or events within the control of the Distr ict, wh ich are either unusual in nature or 
infrequent in occurrence. 

M. Estimates 

The preparation of fi nancial statements in conformi ty with accounting princ iples generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabili ties at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

At December 31 , 2022, the District has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) as follows: 

Demand Deposits 

Trust Funds 

$ 

December 31 , 
2022 

5,202,502 

49,682,320 

$ 54,884,822 
========== 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market va lue. Under state law, these deposits (or the 
resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the 
fi scal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal depos it insurance must at all tim es 
equa l the amount on deposit w ith the fi sca l agent. These securit ies are he ld in the name of the pledging fi scal 
agent bank in a ho lding or custodia l bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. Even though the pledged 
securities may be considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provi sions of GASB Statement 3, Louisiana 
Rev ised Statute 39: 1229 imposes a statutory requi rement on the custodia l bank to advertise and se ll the pledged 
securit ies with in IO days of being notifi ed by the District that the fi scal agent has failed to pay depos ited funds 
upon demand . 
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Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government 's deposits may not be returned 
to it. The District does not have a formal policy for custodial risk. At December 31 , 2022, the District has 
$55,024,198 in cash and cash equivalent deposits (collected bank balances), consisting of $5,341,877 in demand 
deposits and $49,682,321 in Trust Funds. The demand deposits are held in two banks. Demand deposits in one 
bank of $5 ,005,038 are secured from risk by $250,000 of federa l deposit insurance and $4,755,038 of pledged 
securities held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank. The $4,755 ,038 is exposed to custodial 
credit risk because while the amount is secured by pledged securities, such securities are held by the custodial 
bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank (GASB Category 3) . The demand deposits in the second bank of 
$336,839 are secured from risk by $250,000 of federal deposit insurance. and $86,839 of pledged securities held 
by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank. The $86,839 is exposed to custodial credit ri sk. The 
$49,682,321 of Trust Funds is fully collateralized by the Trust Fund department of the participating bank. 

3. Receivables 

At December 31 , 2022, the District recorded $825,214 in customer accounts receivable. Billing services for the 
District are contracted with Ward 2 Water District of Livingston Parish and the City of Denham Springs. 
Accounts receivable at fiscal year-end includes the amounts collected but not yet remitted to the District. 
Customer accounts are written off as deemed uncollectible and any allowance for uncollectible accounts is 
deemed immaterial at fisca l year-end. 

4. Restricted Assets 

The following is a summary of restricted assets at December 31, 2022: 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Bond Reserve Account 
Bond Contingency Account 
Bond Sinking Account 
Bond Proceed Fund 
Impact Fee Fund 
Construction Expansion Fund 

Total Restricted Assets 
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December 31, 

2022 

$ 183,150 
29,820 

3,585,469 
203 

330,324 
47,466,932 

$ 51 ,595,898 
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A summary of changes in capital assets during the fiscal year ending December 3 1, 2022 is as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions and Deletions and 
12/31/21 Reclassifications Reclassifications 
(Restated) 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 
Buildings $ 580,858 $ $ $ 

Machinery and Equipment 2,147,122 126,565 
Utility System 33,876,089 8,236,335 
Vehicles 807,966 

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 37,412,035 8,362,900 

Less Accumulated Depreciation (13 ,165,426) (1 ,269,336) 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 24,246,609 7,093,564 

Land 193,566 
Construction in Progress 7,484,127 1,972,277 (7,473,025) 

Total Capital Assets, Net $ 31 ,924,302 $ 9,065,841 $ (7,473,025) $ 

Ending 
Balance 
12/31/22 

580,858 
2,273,687 

42,1 12,424 
807,966 

45,774,935 

(14,434,762) 

31 ,340,173 

193,566 
1,983,379 

33,517,118 

Depreciation expense for the fiscal year end ing December 3 I, 2022, totaled $ 1,269,336. Capital asset increases 
included $8,236,335 in sewer system improvements for a new plant, $126,565 for various equ ipment and 
improvements, and $1,972,277 for construction in progress relating to the 2022 expansion project. 

26 



Livingston Parish Se,ver District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

6. Long-Term Obligations 

The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions for the year ended December 31 , 2022: 
Beginning Ending Due Within 

Description Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year 

Long-Term Debt 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2012 $ 160,000 $ $ (53,000) $ 107,000 $ 54,000 
Sewer Expansion Bonds, 
Series 2012 12,610,000 (12,610,000) 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2016 1,975,000 (85,000) 1,890,000 85,000 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2018 I 0,315,000 10,3 15,000 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2019 3,860,000 (120,000) 3,740,000 125,000 
Revenue Refunding Bonds 
Series 2021 12,915,000 (90,000) 12,825,000 535,000 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 

50,000,000 50,000,000 
Total Long-Term Debt 91 ,835,000 (12,958,000) 78,877,000 799,000 

Plus: 
Unamortized Premium (Discount) 1,917,222 (59,140) 1,858,082 59,140 

Total Long-Term Debt $ 93 ,752,222 $ $ (13,017,140) $ 80,735,082 $ 858,140 
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Bonds Payable as of December 3 I, 2022 is as follows: 

December 31, 
2022 

Revenue Refunding Bonds $ 572,000 
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 
Dated 6/28/2012 due in annual installments of principal and semi-annual 

installments of interest -varying from $56,804 to $53,755 
interest at 2.85%, with bonds maturing 3/1/2024. $ 107,000 

Sewer Expansion Bonds $ 15,900,000 
Sewer Expansion Bonds, Series 2012 
Dated 11 /21 /2012 due in annual installments of principal and semi-annual 

installments of interest -varying from $853,230 to $847,960 
interest from 2.0% to 3.6%, with bonds maturing 3/1/2042. 
Will be refunded by the Series 2021 Refunding Series 03/1/22 

Revenue Refunding Bonds $ 2,200,000 
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 
Dated 5/16/2016 due in annual installments of principal and semi-annual 

installments of interest -varying from $66,000 to $149,894 
interest from 1.25% to 4.0%, with bonds maturing 3/1/2039. 1,890,000 

Revenue Bonds $ I 0,315,000 
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2018 
Dated 7/19/2018 due in annual installments of principal and semi-annual 

installments of interest - varying from $376,349 to $1,677,815 
interest from 3.0% to 3.7%, with bonds maturing 3/1/2048. 10,315,000 

Revenue Refunding Bonds $ 2,200,000 
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 
Dated 12/12/2019 due in annual installments of principal and semi-annual 

installments of interest -varying from $195,437 to $233,744 
interest from 2.25% to 3.0%, with bonds maturing 3/1/2044. 3,740,000 

Revenue Refunding Bonds $ 12,915,000 
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 
Dated 5/20/2021 due in annual installments of principal and semi-annual 

installments of interest -varying from $385,224 to $830,647 
interest from .49% to 3.0%, with bonds maturing 3/1/2042. 12,825,000 

Revenue Bonds $ 50,000,000 
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 
Dated 12/15/2021 due in annual installments of principal and semi-annual 

installments of interest - varying from $1,457,681 to 
interest from 2.5% to 4.0%, with bonds maturing 3/1/2056. 50,000,000 

$ 78,877,000 
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$ 160,000 

12.610,000 

1,975.000 

10,315,000 

3,860.000 

12.915.000 

50,000.000 

$ 91,835,000 
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The annual requirements to amortize a ll debt outstanding as of December 31 , 2022, including interest payments of 
$47,69 1,066 are as fo llows: 

Series 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2016 Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2018 Sewer Revenue Bonds 
Year Ending $572,000 $2,200,000 $10,315,000 

12/31/20 Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Princieal Interest Total 
2023 54,000 $ 2,280 $ 56,280 85,000 $ 60,275 145,275 $ $ 376.349 $ 376,349 
2024 53.000 755 53,755 90,000 58,700 148.700 376.349 376.349 
2025 90,000 56.967 146.967 50,000 375.599 425,599 
2026 90,000 55,123 145,123 50,000 374,099 424.099 
2027 95,000 52,300 147.300 55.000 372.524 427,524 

2028 to 2032 525,000 201,931 726,931 310,000 1.833.941 2, 143,941 
2033 to 2037 630,000 101 ,341 731,341 385,000 1.775,142 2,160.142 
2038 to 2042 285,000 9,703 294,703 940.000 1.674.957 2.614.957 
2043 to 2047 6,880.000 987.522 7,867.522 
2048 to 2052 1,645,000 30.432 1.675,132 
2053 to 2056 

107,000 $ 3,035 $ 11 0,035 1,890,000 $ 596,340 $ 2,486,340 $ I 0,315,000 $ 8,176.914 $ 18.491.914 

Series 2019 Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2021 Revenue Refu nding Bonds Series 2021 Sewer Revenue Bonds 
Year Ending $3,980,000 $12,91 5,000 $12,915,000 

12/31/20 Principal Interest Total Pri ncipal Interest Total Principal Interest Total 
2023 $ 125,000 $ 108,150 $ 233.150 $ 535,000 $ 293,479 $ 828,479 $ 1.457.681 $ 1.457,681 

2024 125,000 104,400 229.400 540,000 289,713 829,713 1,457,681 1.457.681 
2025 130,000 100,575 230,575 545.000 284,692 829,692 250,000 1,457.681 1,707,681 

2026 135,000 96,600 23 1,600 555,000 278,416 833.416 680,000 1,447.681 2,127.681 

2027 140,000 92,475 232,475 555,000 270,591 825,591 705,000 1,427.281 2,132.281 

2028 to 2032 750,000 405,375 1,155,375 2,960.000 1.185.951 4,145.951 3,980.000 6.689.605 10.669.605 

2033 to 2037 875,000 286,125 1,161 ,125 3,320,000 807,349 4,127.349 4,680,000 5.969.855 10,649.855 

2038 to 2042 1,015,000 144,825 I, 159,825 3,815,000 294,625 4, I 09,625 5,440.000 5,223.305 10.663.305 

2043 to 2047 445,000 13,425 458,425 6.050,000 4.456,280 10.506.280 
2048 to 2052 13.975,000 3.311.055 17,286.055 

2053 to 2056 14.240,000 959.906 15,199.906 

$ 3,740,000 $ 1,351.950 $ 5,091 ,950 $ 12,825,000 $ 3.704.816 $ 16.529.816 $ 50,000,000 $ 33.858.011 $ 83.858.01 I 

Year Ending Total 

12/Jl/20 Principal Interest Total 
2023 $ 799,000 $ 2.298,2 14 $ 3,097.214 
2024 808,000 2,287.598 3,095.598 
2025 1,065,000 2,275,514 3,340,514 
2026 1,5 10,000 2,251,919 3,761,919 
2027 1,550,000 2,215,171 3,765,171 

2028 to 2032 8.525,000 10.316,803 18.84 1.803 
2033 to 2037 9,890,000 8,939,812 18,829,812 
2038 to 2042 11,495,000 7,347,415 18.842.4 15 
2043 to 2047 13,375,000 5,457,227 18,832,227 
2048 to 2052 15,620,000 3.341.487 18,961,487 
2053 to 2056 14,240,000 959,906 15.199,906 

78,877,000 $ 47,691.066 $ 126,568,066 
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7. Flow of Funds, Restrictions on Use 

On February 28, 1984, the District issued $1,047,000 of United States Farmer' s Home Administration (referred to 
as USDA) Sewer Revenue Bonds. The bonds were issued at an annual interest rate of 5.0%, and were due in 
installments of $62,077 through February 28, 2024. These bonds were refunded by the Livingston Parish Sewer 
District # 2 Revenue Refunding Bonds, Refu nding Series 2012, issued on June 28, 2012, at an issue amount of 
$572,000. The Series 20 12 Refunding Bonds of $572,000 bonds were issued at an annual interest rate of 2.85%, 
and are due in annual installments of principal and semi-annual installments of interest expense, with the bonds 
maturing on March I, 2024. The proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds in the amount of $572,000, along 
with certain other proceeds of the District as issuer in the amount of $5 ,3 00, provided funding of $556, 154 for the 
Paying Agent to redeem in full the Series 1984 Bonds, and $21 , 146 to pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds. 
The bond issuance costs totaling $21 , 146 were recorded in the fiscal year ending December 3 I , 2012, as an 
expense in accordance with GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. The 
Series 2012 Refunding Bonds were issued in parity with the $4,950,000 Series 2004 Sewerage System Revenue 
Bonds, and in parity with the Issuer's outstanding obligations under a Local Services Agreement dated December 
22, 2009, by and between the Issuer and Parish of Livingston, State of Louisiana, executed in accordance with the 
issuance by the Local Government Environmental Faci lities and Community Development Authority of its 
$2,500,000 Revenue Bonds. 

On July 21 , 2004, the District approved a resolution for issuance of $4,950,000 in Sewer Revenue Bonds, at 
interest rates varying from 1.625% to 5 .2%, with the bonds maturing on March 1, 2044. Series 2004 Sewer 
Revenue Bonds were originally issued in parity with the 1984 USDA Bonds, refunded by the Series 201 2, and the 
Series 1977-B Bonds, were paid off in 2012. The Series 2004 Sewer Revenue Bonds were refunded by issuance 
of the Sewerage System Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, dated July 22, 2014. 

On July 22, 2014, the District issued Sewerage System Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, in the amount of 
$4,625 ,000. This refunding issue provided for refunding of the Series 2004 Sewer Revenue Bonds, original ly 
issued at $4,950,000. At the time of c losing, the Series 2014 bond issue refunded the outstanding principal 
balance of $4,295 ,000 of the Series 2004 bonds. The Series 2014 issued at $4,625,000 is payable in annual 
installments of principal, and semi-annual interest installments with interest rates ranging from 2% to 4%, with 
principal and interest installments beginning on March 1, 2015 , to maturity on March 1, 2044. 

The Series 2014 Refunding is categorized as an Advance Refunding since the new debt proceeds were placed 
with an escrow agent and invested until they are used to pay principal and interest on the debt at a future time. An 
in-substance defeasance for accounting and reporting purposes is deemed to have occurred si nce the debtor 
irrevocably placed cash or other assets with an escrow agent in a trust to be used solely for satisfying scheduled 
payments of interest and principal of the defeased debt, and the possibility that the debtor will be required to make 
future payments on that debt is remote. The trust is restricted to owning only monetary assets that are essentially 
risk-free as to the amount, timing, and collection of interest and principal. For the Advance Refunding, the 
District must report the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount as a deferred 
outflow or deferred inflow of resources and recognize the difference as a component of interest expense in a 
systematic and rational manner over the remaining life of the old debt or the new debt, whichever is shorter. 
Footnote 9 of GASB Statement 62 provides a definition of reacquisition price for an Advance Refunding as the 
amount that is placed in escrow that, together with interest earnings, is necessary to pay interest and principal on 
the old debt and call premium . A premium or discount pertaining to the new debt is not considered pa1t of the 
reacquisit ion price but, instead is a separate item related to and amortized over the life of the new debt. Net 
Carrying Amount is the amount due at maturity, adjusted for any unamortized premium or discount related to the 
old debt. For the Series 2014 Refunding, the District recogn ized a Deferred Outflow of $49,488, consisting of 
Reacquisition Price of $4,483 ,229 placed in escrow plus less Carrying Amount of $4,295 ,000 less reserve fu nds 

30 



Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

of $138,741 applied to the refunding transaction. The Series 2014 Sewer Revenue Bonds were refunded by 
issuance of the Sewerage System Refund ing Bond s, Series 2019, dated December 12, 20 19. 

On May 19, 2016, the District issued $2,200,000 of Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016. The Series 2016 
bonds issued at $2,200,00 are payable in annual installments of princ ipa l, and semi-annual interest installments 
with interest rates ranging from 1.25% to 4%, with principal and interest installments beginning on May 19, 20 16, 
to maturi ty on March I, 2039. With the issuance of the Series 20 16 bonds, the District incurred bond issuance 
costs of $92,914. Also incurred were Prepaid Insurance Costs of $12,056, and $58,535 re lated to bond premium , 
which are amortized over the li fe of the bond . 

These Series 20 16 bonds were issued to accomplish a partia l refunding of the Series 2009 bonds issued at 
$2,500,000 by the Livingston Pari sh Council. Concurrent with the issuance of the bonds, Livingston Sewer 
District also recorded $ 122,683 as a transfer in from the Livingston Parish Counc il for debt reserve funds of 
Series 2009 bond issue for funds used to pay bond issuance costs, and a transfer to the Livingston Parish Council 
in the amount of $2,276,245 for refunding of the Series 2009 bonds of the Livingston Parish Counci l. The Series 
2009 bonds of the Livingston Parish Council were an issuance by the Livingston Parish Counc il pursuant to the 
Local Government Environmental Facilities and Com munity Development Authority . ot refunded by the 
Series 2016 bond issue were debt installments through year 2019 of the Series 2009 bond issue of the Livingston 
Parish Council , and these debt insta llments remain an obligation of Livingston Sewer District No. 2. This 
obligation was fully paid as of fi scal year end. 

The bond restrictions were revised with the issuance of the 2014 Sewer Revenue Bond Issue at $4,625 ,000, and 
the Series 2012 Refunding Bonds at $572,000, and the issuance of the Series 2016 Refunding Bonds, with 
variations noted below. The $ 15,900,000 Series 2012 Ward Two Sewer Expansions Bonds, and the Series 2016 
Refunding Bonds, were also issued in parity with these bonds, but the provisions described below fo r the Reserve 
Fund and the Depreciat ion and Contingency Fund, as listed below, do not apply to the $15 ,900,000 Series 20 l 2 
Bonds or the Series 2016 Refunding Bonds. The Reserve Fund for these bonds was funded by insurance at the 
time of bond c losing, and the bond documents do not specify a requirement for a Deprec iation and Contingency 
Fund . Bond restrictions are described below: 

Sewerage System Bond and Interest Sinking Fund (the Sinking Fund): Each month the District shall transfer from 
the Sewer Revenue Fund to the regularly des ignated fi scal agent bank of the Issuer (which must be a member of 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation), monthly in advance on or before the 20th day of each month of each 
year a sum equal to 1/12 of the principal and l /6 interest falling due on the next principal and interest payment 
date, together with such additional proportionate sum as may be required to pay said principals and interest as the 
same respectively become due. The $ 15,900,000 Series 20 12 bonds specify a required payment by the 25th of 
each month to the Sinking Fund in an amount sufficient in amount to make the principal and interest payments 
due on the Bonds. Money in the Sinking Fund shall be deposited as trust fund s and shall be used so lely and is 
hereby expressly and exclusively pledged for the purpose of pay ing principal and interest on the bond and parity 
bonds. Said fiscal agent shall make available from the revenue bond sinking fund to the pay ing agent such funds 
as are available from the Sinking Fund, at least ten days in advance of the date on which each payment of 
principal or interest falls due, funds fully sufficient to pay promptly the principal and interest so fa lling due on 
such date. 

At fiscal year-end, all requ ired deposits were made to the Sinking Fund, and the Sinking Fund was fully funded. 

Sewerage System Revenue Bond Reserve Fund (the Reserve Fund) : Each month the District must transfer into the 
Reserve fund , monthly in advance on or before the 20th day of each month of each year, a sum equal to five 
percent of the sum required by applicable bond covenants, such payments to continue unti l an am ount has been 
accumulated in the Reserve Fund an amount of money equal to the highest combined principal and interest 
requirements for any succeeding twelve ( 12) month period on such bonds payab le from the Reserve Fund The 
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amount that must be deposited each month to the Reserve Fund is equal to 5% of the required monthly interest 
and principal installments for outstand ing parity bonds. 

The money in the Reserve Fund is to be retained solely fo r the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on 
bonds payable from the Sinking Fund as to wh ich there would otherwise be default. In the event that additional 
pari passu bonds are issued hereafter in the manner provided by this resolution, there shall be transferred from the 
Sewerage System Revenue Fund into the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund, monthly or annua lly, such amounts (as 
may be designated in the resolution authoriz ing the issuance of such pari passu bonds) as will increase the total 
amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund within a period not exceeding five (5) years from the date of delivery of 
the parity bonds to a sum equal to the highest combined principal and interest requirements in any succeedi ng 
fiscal year on all outstand ing bonds issued pursuant to the terms of this resolution, including such pari passu 
bonds. The Series 20 14 bond refunding required a $26 1,300 deposit to the Debt Service Reserve Fund. Required 
deposits, as detailed above, supplement the $26 1,300 deposit. The Reserve Fund was fully funded before bei ng 
paid off by the Series 20 I 9 Revenue Refunding Bonds dated December 12, 2019. 

The Series 2014 bond covenants a lso note that the obligations of the issuer pursuant to the 2009 LSA (the Serie 
2009 obligations which are an ob ligation of the Livingston Pari sh Counci l) are secured by a separate reserve fund , 
and the Series 2012 bonds, issued at $ 15,900,000, are secured by a Reserve Fund Alternate Investments. In no 
event shall funds in the Reserve Fund be used to make payments on the 2009 LSA or the Series 2012 $ 15,900,000 
bond issue. 

Sewerage System Depreciation and Contingency Fund (the Depreciation and Contingency Fund) : 
Each month the District shall transfer from the Sewerage System Reven ue Fund an amount monthly in advance 
on or before the 20th day of each month of each year beginning with the first month fol lowing completion of the 
improvements and extensions to the System financed wi th the proceeds of the Bonds, the sum equal to fi ve 
percent of the amount, for each parity bond, to be paid monthly into the Sinking Fund . All monies in the 
Depreciation and Conti ngency Fund may be drawn on and used by the District for the purpose of paying the cost 
of unusual or extraordinary maintenance, repairs, replacements and extensions, and the costs of improvements to 
the Sewerage System which wi ll either enhance its revenue-producing capacity or provide a higher degree of 
service. In the event the available ba lances in the Revenue Bond Sinking Fund and Sewerage System Revenue 
Bond Reserve Fund are insufficient, monies on deposit in the Depreciation and Contingency Fund shall be 
transferred in such amounts as are necessary to e liminate the deficiencies, respectively, in the Revenue Bond 
Sinking Fund and Reserve Fund . The Depreciation and Contingency Fu nd was ful ly funded before be ing paid o ff 
by the Series 2019 Revenue Refunding Bonds dated December 12, 2019. 

Bond Debt Coverage Factor: With the issuance of the parity bonds, the District (the Issuer) covenants to fi x, 
establish, maintain and collect, so long as any princ ipal and interest is unpaid on the Bonds, such rates, fees , rents 
or other charges for the services and facilities of the System, and all parts thereof, and to revise the same from 
time to time whenever necessary, as wi ll always provide revenues in each fiscal year sufficient to (i) pay the 
reasonable and necessary expenses of operating and maintain ing the System in each fiscal year; (ii) to provide Net 
Revenues in an amount sufficient to make deposits in the Sinking Fund and the Reserve Fund establi shed by the 
Prior Bond Resolutions and maintained by the Bond Reso lution for the payment of the principal and interest on 
the bonds, the Parity Bonds, and any Additiona l Parity Obligations issued hereafter; (ii i) provide Net Revenues in 
an amount equal to one hundred twenty-five percent ( 125%) of the required deposits to the Sinking Fund for the 
security and payment of the Bonds and the Parity Bonds; (iv) make a ll other payments required by the Bond 
Resolution; and (v) pay all other obligations or indebtedness payable out of the Revenues for such fi scal year. 
The Issuer further covenants that such rates, fees, rents or other charges shall not at any time be reduced so as to 
be insufficient to provide adequate revenues for such purposes. 

For the fiscal year ending December 3 I , 2022, the com putation for the bond debt coverage ratio (Net Revenues to 
bond deposit requirements) was in compliance with bond provisions requiring the 125% ratio. 

32 



Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

On July 19, 2018, the District issued $ I 0,3 15,000 of Revenue Bonds, Series 2018 for construction of the southern 
expansion project. The Series 20 18 bonds issued at $10,3 15,000 are payable in annual installments of principa l, 
and semi-annual interest installments with interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 3.7%, with interest installments 
beginning on March 1, 2019 and principal insta ll ments begin ning on March I , 2025, to maturity on March L 
2048. With the issuance of the Series 2018 bonds, the District incurred bond issuance costs of $301,069. Also 
incurred were Prepaid Insurance Costs of $57,533, and $ 140,980 re lated to a bond discount, which are amortized 
over the life of the bond. 

Sinking Fund: All payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds are expected to be made from the 2018 
Debt Service Fund. Such account serves as a debt serv ice fund for the payment of principal of and interest on the 
Bonds. Amounts deposited into the Debt Service Fund which are required to pay a portion of the next maturing 
principal of and next due interest on the Bonds are expected to be deposited monthly (but not more than one year 
prior to such payment). It is expected that all such amounts (together with investment income thereon) will be 
used to pay such principal and interest within thi rteen months from the date of receipt. 

At fiscal year-end, all required deposits were made to the Sinking Fund, and the Sink ing Fund was fully funded. 

Reserve Fund: The Reserve Fund will initially be funded with a surety bond insurance policy. The Underwriter 
has represented in the Issue Price Certificate that the establishment of the Reserve Fund in the amount thereof is 
reasonably required, in that the estab lishment of the Reserve Fund at the level of funding equal to the Reserve 
Fund Amount was a material factor in selling the Bonds at the lowest possible yields. 

On December 12, 2019, the District issued $3 ,980,000 of Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2019. This refunding 
issue provided for current refund ing of the Series 2014 Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, originally issued at 
$4,625 ,000. At the time of closing, the Series 2019 bond issue refunded the outstanding principal balance of 
$4,265,000 of the Series 2016 bonds. The Series 20 19 bonds issued at $3 ,980,000 are payable in annual 
installments of principal, and semi-annual interest insta llments with interest rates ranging from 2.25% to 3.00%, 
with interest installments beginning on March 1, 2020 and principal installments beginning on March I , 2021, to 
maturity on March l, 2044. With the issuance of the Series 2019 bonds, the District incurred bond issuance costs 
of$133,135. Also incurred were Prepaid Insurance Costs of$13,717, and $27,926 related to a bond premium, 
which are amortized over the life of the bond. 

For the Current Refunding, the District must report the difference between the reacquisition price and the net 
carrying amount as a deferred outflow or deferred inflow of resources and recognize the difference as a 
component of interest expense in a systematic and rational manner over the remaining life of the old debt or the 
new debt, whichever is shorter. Footnote 9 of GASS Statement 62 provides a definition of reacquisition price for 
a Current Refunding as the principal amount remaining on the old debt plus any call premium, any unam ortized 
prepaid insurance, and any miscellaneous costs that must be paid to refund the debt currently. A premium or 
di scount pertaining to the new debt is not considered part of the reacquisition price but, instead is a separate item 
re lated to and amortized over the life of the new debt. Net Carrying Amount is the amount due at maturity, 
adj usted for any unamortized premium or discount re lated to the old debt. For current refunding or prior 
refund ing, the deferral of the difference between the net carrying amount of the prior refunding debt and the 
cost/reacquisition price of the new debt, together with the unamortized balance from the prior refunding. For the 
Series 2019 Refunding, the District recognized a Deferred Outfl ow of $6,706, consisting of Reacq ui sition Price of 
$4,155,000 less Carrying Amount of $4,161,706. This Deferred Outflow was added to the unamortized Deferred 
Outflow from Series 2014 Refunding of $40,674 for a tota l Deferred Outflow of $47,380 that will be amortized 
over the shorter of the original period remaining (300 months) or life of latest refunding (300 months). The 
balance of the Deferred Outflow at December 3 1, 2022 was $41,696. 

The bond restrictions are described below. 
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Sinking Fund: All payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds are expected to be made from the 2019 
Debt Service Fund. Such account serves as a debt service fu nd for the payment of principal of and interest on the 
Bonds. Amounts deposited into the Debt Service Fund which are required to pay a portion of the next maturing 
principal of and next due interest on the Bonds are expected to be deposited by the District with the paying agent 
fifteen days prior to each interest payment date on the Bonds. It is expected that all such amounts (together wi th 
investment income thereon) will be used to pay such principal and interest within thirteen months from the date of 
receipt. 

At fisca l year-end, all required deposits were made to the Sinking Fund, and the Sinking Fund was fully funded . 

Reserve Fund: The Reserve Fund will initially be funded with a surety bond insurance policy . The Underwriter 
has represented in the Issue Price Certificate that the establishment of the Reserve Fund in the amount thereof is 
reasonably required, in that the establishment of the Reserve Fund at the level of funding equal to the Reserve 
Fund Amount was a material factor in sell ing the Bonds at the lowest possible yields. 

On May 20, 2021, the District issued $12,915,000 of Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021. This refunding 
issue provided for an advanced refunding of the Series 2012 Sewer Revenue Bonds, originally issued at 
$15 ,900,000. The Series 2021 Revenue refunding bonds issue will refund the outstanding principal balance of 
$12,610,000 of the Series 2012 bonds. The Series 2021 Revenue Refunding Bonds issued at $12,915,000 are 
payable in annual installments of princ ipal, and semi-annual interest installments with interest rates ranging from 
.49% to 3.00%, with interest installments beginning on March I, 2022 and principal installments beginning on 
March I, 2022, to maturity on March I, 2042. With the issuance of the Series 2021 Revenue refunding bonds, the 
District incurred bond issuance costs of $297,898. Also incurred were Prepaid Insurance Costs of $63,426, and 
$39,238 related to a bond discount, which are amortized over the life of the bond . 

The bond restrictions are described below. 

Sinking Fund: All payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds are expected to be made from the 202 1 
Debt Service Fund. Such account serves as a debt service fund for the payment of principal of and interest on the 
Bonds. Amounts deposited into the Debt Service Fund which are required to pay a portion of the next maturing 
principal of and next due interest on the Bonds are expected to be deposited by the District with the pay ing agent 
ten days prior to each interest payment date on the Bonds. It is expected that all such amounts (together with 
investment income thereon) will be used to pay such principal and interest within thirteen months from the date of 
receipt. 

At fiscal year-end, all required deposits were made to the Sinking Fund, and the Sinking Fund was fully funded. 

Reserve Fund: The Reserve Fund will initially be funded with a surety bond insurance policy. The Underwriter 
has represented in the Issue Price Certificate that the establi shment of the Reserve Fund in the amount thereof is 
reasonably required, in that the establishment of the Reserve Fund at the level of funding equal to the Reserve 
Fund Amount was a material factor in selling the Bonds at the lowest possible yields. 

On December 15, 2021, the District issued $50,000,000 of Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 for financing the 
acquisition, construction, extension and improvement of the District's sewerage system (the " Improvement 
Project" ). The Series 2021 bonds issued at $50,000,000 are payable in annual installments of principal, and sem i­
annual interest installments with interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 4 .0%, with interest installments beginning on 
March I, 2022 and principal installments beginning on March I, 2025, to maturity on March I , 2056. With the 
issuance of the Series 2021 bonds, the District incurred bond issuance costs of $1 ,023 ,925. Also incurred were 
Prepaid Insurance Costs of $173,332, and $2,007,799 re lated to a bond premium, which are amortized over the 
li fe of the bond . 
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Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

Sinking Fund: Each month the District shall transfer from the Sewer Revenue Fund to the regularly designated 
fi scal agent bank of the Issuer (which must be a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation), monthly 
in advance on or before the 20th day of each month of each year a sum equal to I /12 of the principal and I /6 
interest fa lling due on the next principal and interest payment date, together with such additional proportionate 
sum as may be required to pay said principals and interest as the same respectively become due. The $50,000,000 
Series 2021 bonds specify a required payment by the 20th of each month to the Sinking Fund in an amount 
sufficient in amount to make the principal and interest payments due on the Bonds. It is expected that all such 
amounts (together with investment income thereon) will be used to pay such principal and interest within thi rteen 
months from the date of receipt. 

At fiscal year-end, all required deposits were made to the Sinking Fund, and the Sinking Fund was fully funded. 

Reserve Fund: The Reserve Fund will initially be funded with a surety bond insurance policy. The Underwriter 
has represented in the Issue Price Cert ificate that the establishm ent of the Reserve Fund in the amount thereof is 
reasonably required, in that the establishment of the Reserve Fund at the level of funding equal to the Reserve 
Fund Amount was a material factor in se lling the Bonds at the lowest possible yields. 

Total interest expense from a ll sewer reven ue bonds equaled $2,3 I 9,756 for the year ending December 3 I, 2022. 
All bonds are secured by the Net Revenues of the District. The gross sewer revenue recognized during the current 
period was $6,772,303. 

8. Asset Retirement Obligation 

The District was adopted GASB Statement No. 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligation for the year ended 
December 31 , 202 I. The District recorded an asset retirement obligation re lated to an DEQ environmental 
obi igation to close sewer treatment plants at the end of service. The original amount recorded was for $240,8 I 3 
and will be amortized over twenty years with e ighteen years remaining. The amount amortized for the year ended 
December 3 I, 2022 and recorded in repairs and maintenance was $ 12,04 I. The unamortized amount of the asset 
retirement obligation at December 31 , 2022 was $204,691 . 

9. Restricted et Position 

At December 31 , 2022, Livingston Parish Sewer District recorded $4, I 29,343 in Restricted Net Position 
(Restricted for Capital Activity and Debt Service), representing the District' s funds restricted by revenue bond 
debt covenants and impact fees received for expansion restricted by enabling legis lation. 

10. Intergovernmental Agreements 

Bi lling services for the District are contracted to the City to Denham Springs and Ward Two Water District of 
Livingston Parish. The District has a Loca l Service Agreement with Water Two Water District for January I, 
2022 through December 31, 2023. The agreement states that Ward Two Water District will collect the monthly 
service charge, connection fees , and tap fees for sewer services provided by the District less cost of collection and 
administration . This cost of collection and admini stration is the sum of $1.50 per month per connection which are 
billed by Ward Two Water District, the sum of $3.00 for each service or connection charge collected on existing 
taps, the sum of $8.00 for each new tap fee collected for first tim e service, and the sum of $20.00 for each impact 
fee collected. The District has a Local Service Agreement with the City of Denham Springs. The agreement states 
that The City of Denham will col lect the monthly service charge, connection fees , and tap fees for sewer services 
provided by the District less cost of collection and administration. This cost of collection and administration is the 
sum of $1.00 per month per connection which are billed by the City of Denham . 
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11. Risk Management 

Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of and fo r the Year Ended Decem ber 31, 2022 
(with 2021 summarized comparative information) 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft, damage, or destruction of assets, torts, injuries, 
natural disasters, and many unforeseeable events. The District purchases commercial insurance policies and 
bonds for any and all claims related to the aforementioned risks. The District' s payment of the in surance po licy 
deductible is the only liabi li ty associated with these policies and bonds. 

12. Litigation 

The District is involved in lawsuits and claims in the ordi nary course of their operations. It is management's 
opinion that outstanding claims would not have a material effect on the District' s operations. 

13. Other Commitments and Contingencies 

During the fisca l year ended December 3 I, 2022, the District entered into a contract for $1,058,766 for 
construction of sewer line extensions. 

In 2023 , the District entered into a contract fo r construction of a sewer maintenance building for $ 1,273,000. 

14. Storm and Flood Expenses 

The District incurred approximate ly $85 8, I 00 in expenses related to the August 2016 Flood disaster. Thes 
expenses were incurred to repair sewerage facilities, to replace the bridge to the District office, and to facilitate 
continuing operation of these fac ilities during the disaster. The District has a receivable of $343,290 from FEMA 
for disaster assistance at December 31 , 2022. The District is sti ll working with GOHSEP to obtain available 
reimbursements for disaster assistance. 

As of December 31, 2022 the District has a receivable of $445,030 from FEMA for disaster assistance for 
Hurricane Ida. 

15. Prior Period Adjustments 

Beginning Net Position Before Prior Period Adj ustments 

Adjustment of Property, Plant & Equipment, Net 

Beginning Net Position After Prior Period Adjustments 

16. Subsequent Events 

$ 

$ 

2022 
8,115,754 

(62.211) 

8,053,543 

Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through June 2 1, 2023, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued and these financia l statements considered subsequent events through such date. o 
events were noted that require recording or disclosure in the financial statements for the fiscal year ending 
December 31 , 2022. 
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Livingston Parish Se\\ er District 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position-Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year Ended December 31 , 2022 
(With Comparative Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2021) 

Operating Revenues 
Sewer Fees 
Permits & Inspect ion Fees 
User & Hook-up Fees 
Impact Fees 
Other Operating Income 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Salaries and Wages 
Payroll Taxes & Group Insurance 
Per Diem 
Amortization 
Bad Debts 
Depreciation 
Fuel/Oil-Trucks 
Insurance 
Licenses & Permits 
Office Expense 
Other 
Professional Fees 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Supplies 
Telephone 
Uniform Expense 
Utilities 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest Income 
FEMA Reim bursement 
Interest Expense 
Bond Issuance Cost 
Insurance Proceeds 
Stonn Expense 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Ex penses) 

Change in Net Position 

Total Net Position, Beginning 
Prior Period Adjustment (Note 15) 

Total Adjusted Net Position, Beginning 
Total et Position, Ending 

See independent auditor's report. 

$ 

$ 

2022 
Budget 

6.072,500 $ 

61 ,000 
200,000 

1,250,000 
31,000 

7,6 14,500 

685,000 
284,500 

6,200 
3,500 

15,000 
1,450,000 

107,000 
160,000 
24,000 
4,800 

202,500 
120,000 

I 710.200 
263,000 
40,000 
21,000 

560,000 
5,656,700 

1,957,800 

356,000 
30,200 

(1,365,000) 

(150,000) 
( 1.128,800) 

829.000 

8,1 15,754 

8,11 5,754 
8.944,754 $ 
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2022 
Actual 

6,5 12.11 2 $ 

71.83 7 
188.354 

1,198,0 17 
25,544 

7,995,864 

686,965 
295,305 

6.100 
18,117 
8,026 

1,269,336 
115.194 
204,761 
24,712 
4,340 

208.724 
128.202 

1,679.063 
264,856 
36.620 
19.946 

651,701 
5,621 ,968 

2,373,896 

558,7 14 
12.658 

(2,3 I 9,756) 

(153,834) 
( I. 902,218) 

47 1,678 

8,053,543 

8.053,543 
8,525,221 $ 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

439.61 2 $ 
10,837 

(11 ,646) 
(51,983) 

(5,456) 
38 1,364 

(1,965) 
(10.805) 

100 
(14,617) 

6,974 
180.664 

(8.194) 
(44,761) 

(712) 
460 

(6,224) 
(8,202) 
31.137 
(1,856) 
3.380 
1.054 

(91 ,701) 
34,732 

416.096 

202,714 
( 17.542) 

(954,756) 

(3,834) 
(773,418) 

(357,322) 

(62,211) 

(62,211) 
(419,533) $ 

Schedule I 

2021 
Actual 

5.037.557 
53.240 

197.829 
1.006,774 

30.840 
6.326.240 

688.01 4 
244. 174 

5.800 
12.185 
13.403 

1.154.060 
67.782 

154.350 
21.837 
6.697 

134.146 
147.923 

1.281.361 
250.1 26 

27.256 
15.899 

478,205 
4,703.218 

1.623.022 

3.733 
524.81 8 

( 1.224.242) 
( 1.333. I 96) 

409.560 
(41 7,172) 

(2,036.499) 

(41 3.477) 

8.529.231 
(62,2 11 ) 

8,467.020 
8,053.543 
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Livingston Parish Sewer Di!;trict 
Schedule of Insurance 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 

Insurance Company / 
Policy Number 

Glatfelter Insurance 
Group/National Union Fire 
GPNU-PF-000 I 581 

Western Surety Co. 
Bond # 18306688 

Western Surety Co. 
Bond # 18279338 

Louisiana Workers Comp 
Policy # 15296 

Coverage 
Commercial Package: 

Commercial Property (Scheduled) 
General Liability: 

Each Occurrence 
Damage to Premises Rented 
Medical Expense 
Personal and Advertising Injury 
General Aggregate 
Products-Completed Oper Aggreg. 
Employee Theft 

Public Officials & Management Liab: 
Each "Wrongful Act" or Offense 
General Aggregate (Combined) 

Inland Marine 
Rented or Borrowed Equipment 

Commercial Excess Liability: 
Each Occurrence 
Claims-Made Aggregate 

Commercial Auto: 
Liability (Combined Single Limit-CSL) 
Uninsured Motorists (CSL) 
Physical Damage (As Scheduled) 

Employee Dishonesty (Position 
Schedule) 

Crime Bond 

Workers Compensation at Statutory 
Employers Liabil ity (each accident) 
Employees Liability (each accident) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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$ 

Amount 

29,445,933 

1,000,000 
1,000,000 

10,000 
1,000,000 
3,000,000 
3,000,000 

10,000 

1,000,000 
3,000,000 

57,987 
250,000 

5,000,000 
5,000,000 

1,000,000 
1.000,000 

310,000 

135,000 

1,000,000 
1,000,000 

Schedule 2 

Period 
3/24/2022 to 3/24/2023 

7/ 15/2022 to 7/ 15/2023 

9/ I 7 /2022 to 9/17/2023 

3/24/2022 to 3/24/2023 



Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Schedule of Compensation Paid to Board of Commissioners 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 
Compensation 

Name and Title / Contact Number Address Received 
Michael Dougay, Chairman 36375 Page Drive $ 1,300 
(225) 978-8988 Denham Springs, LA 70706 

Harry Wells 26170 John L Lane 1,400 
(225) 485-1676 Denham Springs, LA 70726 

Norris Achord 32375 Cane Market Rd 1,100 
(225) 603-6612 Walker, LA 70785 

Asa Faulkner 8562 Beechwood Drive 1,000 
(225) 287-8518 Denham Springs, LA 70706 

Brandon Caldwell 22058 LA Hwy 16 1,300 
(225) 305-6334 Denham Spring, LA 70726 

$ 6,100 

See independent auditor's report. 
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Schedule 3 

Term Expiration 
Until Re-appointed 

Until Re-appointed 

Until Re-appointed 

Until Re-appointed 

Until Re-appointed 



Schedul1 
Livingston Parish Sewer District 

Schedule of Compensation, Reimbursements, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head 
For the year ended December 31, 2022 

Agency Head Name: Michael Dougay, Chairman 

Purpose 
Board Member Per Diem 

Employer Paid Payroll Taxes 

See independent auditor's report. 
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Amount 
$ 1,300 

$ 1,300 



Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Schedule of Customers and Schedule of Sewer Rates 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 

2022 2021 
Customers 15,139 
Total Customers 15,139 

Base tap fee of $750.00 this fee is required for a sewer service tap 
that was not previously installed with the LPSD sanitary sewer lines. 

Base tap fee of $350.00 this fee is required in order to inspect the connection 

9,326 
9,326 

to be made between the sewer user service line and a pre-existing sewer service tap. 

Sewer Fees (Effective June 1, 2015) 
Residential Sewer Rates: 
$ 37.50 - First 2,000 Gallons 

4.00 - All Over 2,000 Gallons, per Thousand 
37.50 - Residential With Own Well - Flat Rate 

Commercial Sewer Rates: 
$ 59.50 - Plus $6.25 Per Thousand Gallons 

59.50 - Flat Rate Only. 
59.50 - $59.5.50 Per Unit Plus $6.25 

Per Thousand Gallons. 

See independent auditor's report. 

Flat Rate Plus Usage 
Commercial W/own Well. 
Commercial With Multiple 

Connections Having a 
Single Water Meter 
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$ 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

5,813 
5,813 

Impact Fee 
3,649 
3,777 

11 ,268 
46,980 
50,222 

121 ,796 
259,202 
742,317 

Schedule 5 

Size Tap 
3/4" Tap 
I" Tap 
I & 1/2" Tap 
2" Tap 
3" Tap 
4" Tap 
6" Tap 
8" Tap 
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government 

A uditing Standards 

Board of Commissioners 
Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Denham Springs, Louisiana 70438 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the fi nancial statements of the business-type activities of the Livingston 
Parish Sewer District, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the L ivingston Parish Sewer District's basic financial statements and 
have issued our report dated June 21, 2023 . 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the fi nancial statements, we considered the Livingston Parish Sewer 
District's internal control over fi nancial reporting (i nterna l control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances fo r the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effect iveness of the Livingston Parish Sewer District 's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Livingston Parish Sewer District's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control ex ists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of perfo rm ing the ir assigned functions , to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possib il ity that a material misstatement of the entity ' s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged wi th governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was fo r the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this sect ion 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in interna l contro l that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified. Given these limitations, during our aud it we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control , described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Current Year Findings, Recommendations and Responses, as item 2022-01 to be a 
significant deficiency. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Livingston Parish Sewer District ' s financi al 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certa in provis ions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests di sc losed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Livingston Parish Sewer District's Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Livingston Par ish 
Sewer District' s response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Current Year Findings, Recommendations, and Responses. The Li vingston Pari sh Sewer District' s response was 
not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the finan cia l statements and, accord in gly, we 
express no opinion on the response. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control s and compl iance and the 
results of that testing, and not to prov ide an opinion on the effectiveness of the ent ity ' s internal contro l or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance w ith Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity ' s internal control and compliance. According ly, th is commun ication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

~/2,,}'h filu26on 
Hebert Johnson & Associates, Inc. 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 
Albany, Louisiana 
June 21 , 2023 
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Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Schedule of Current Year Findings, Recommendations, and Responses 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Livingston Parish Sewer District as of and for the year 

ended December 31, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated June 21 , 2023. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 

applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 

the United States. Our audit of the financial statements as of December 31, 2022 resulted in an unmodified 

opinion. 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Reports 

a . Report on Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 

Internal Control 

Material Weakness, No Significant Deficiencies, Yes 

Compliance 

Compliance Material to Financial Statements, No 

b. Federal Awards 

Not Applicable 

Was a management letter issued? No 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

Finding Number: 2022-01 Lack of Proper Segregation of Duties (Significant Deficiency) 

Criteria: 
Proper segregation of incompatible duties requires that there be different individuals responsible for authorizing 
transactions, recording transactions, and maintaining custody of related assets. 

Condition: 
With all smaller agencies, there will be limited personnel for recording receipts and disbursements and fo r 
reporting financial transactions . The District has implemented the following compensating controls: 

1) Direct approval by the board for all key financial transactions. 
2) Maintenance of detail registers to suppo1t all disbursements. 
3) Monthly reconciliation and repo1ting by an outside accountant. 
4) Approval and signing of checks by board members. 

Cause: 
Due to the size and nature of the District, there are few administrative employees and as such, some incompatib le 
duties are not adequately segregated. 

Effect: 
Inadequate segregation of duties exposes the District to several risks, including, but not limited to 
misappropriation of assets and inaccurate or fraudu lent financia l reporting. 
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Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Schedule of Current Year Findings, Recommendations, and Responses 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

Recommendations: 
The District must remain vigilant in identifying compensating controls and ensuring that those im plemented are 
operating effectively. We recommend the District to perform the following compensat ing controls: 

• A member of the board should review the monthly bank statements and cancel led checks for any fictitious 
vendors and unauthorized debits. 

• Check signers should initial invoices to show approval of payment. Check signers shou ld match the name 
and amount on the check to the invoice provided . 

• Continue to review the billing agent detailed payment registers to verify billings, and repo11s to verify 
account activ ity, including the addition of new customers. 

Management's Response: 
Management will continue to refine compensating controls even with a lack of adm inistrative staff. The board 
will adopt a policy requiring the Chairman to implement an approval step whereby he reviews, signs, and dates 
his review of the bank statements and reconciliations provided on a month ly basis. Board members which 
currently sign vendor check disbursements at board meetings wi ll also implement an action step of initia ling the 
invoices/statements upon review at each monthly meeting. These steps shall strengthen the control process. 

Contact Person: 
Michael Dougay, Chairman 
(225) 978-8988 

Section Ill Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

NA 
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Prior Year Findings: 

Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Responses 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

Finding Number: 2021-01 Lack of Proper Segregation of Duties (Significant Deficiency) 

Condition: 
With all smaller agencies, there will be limited personnel for recording receipts and disbursements and for 
reporting financial transactions. The District has implemented the following compensating controls: 

5) Direct approval by the board for all key financial transactions. 
6) Maintenance of detail registers to support all disbursements. 
7) Monthly reconciliation and reporting by an outside accountant. 
8) Approval and signing of checks by board members. 

Recommendation: 
We recommend management include in each employee's file (I) the employment application form that includes 
background information ( employee's name, address, date of birth, emergency contact) and work experience of the 
employee; (2) the approved starting salary or rate of pay amount; (3) the Federal Employee's Withholding 
Allowance Certificate Form W-4 and Louisiana Employee Withholding Exemption Certificate Form L-4; (4) 
approved salary or hourly pay rate increases/decreases; (5) employee authorized deductions (e.g. , insurance. 
deferred compensation plan); (6) performance appraisals; (7)promotions; and (8) disciplinary actions. We also 
recommend the District approve all current pay rates for employees to save as a record in each personnel file to 
document proper pay rates goi ng forward. 

Resolved: 
See Finding 2022-01 

2021-02 Approval of Payroll (Material Weakness) 

Conditions: 
As part of our internal control procedures, we reviewed a sample of personnel files . We noted the files did not 
contain the approved starting salary or subsequent changes to pay rates. 

Recommendation: 
We recommend management include in each employee's file (I) the employment application fonn that includes 
background information (employee's name, address, date of birth, emergency contact) and work experience of the 
employee; (2) the approved starting salary or rate of pay amount; (3) the Federal Employee's With hold ing 
Allowance Certificate Form W-4 and Louisiana Employee Withholding Exemption Certificate Form L-4; (4) 
approved salary or hourly pay rale increases/decreases; (5) employee authorized deductions (e.g., insurance, 
deferred compensation plan); (6) performance appraisals; (7)promotions; and (8) disciplinary actions. We also 
recommend the District approve all current pay rates for employees to save as a record in each personnel file to 
document proper pay rates going forward . 

Resolved: 
Fully 

2021-03 Material Prior Period Adjustments (Material Weakness) 

Condition: 
A prior period adjustment was made in order to adjust accrued interest of $211 ,853, and asset ret irement 
obi igation for the sewer plant of $228,772, an asset retirement obligation liability of $90,813 and accrued vacation 
of $27,997 to its actual amount. The amount of the adjustment resulted in a difference of $321 ,815 . 
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Recommendation: 

Livingston Parish Sewer District 
Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Responses 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

We recommend the District record the adjustments provided by the auditor. 

Resolved: 
Fully 

Compliance 

2021-04 Ethics and Sexual Harassment Training 

Condition: 
The District did not have documentation of the required ethics and sexual harassment training for the five publ ic 

officials or servants tested at December 31 , 2021 . 

Recommendation: 
The District should ensure all board members and employees complete the required traini ng during each year. The 
District should set a completion deadline for all board members to complete the required training. 

Resolved: 
Fully 

2021-05 Violation of Public Bid Law 

Condition: 
The District purchased a generator for $62,000 for emergency maintenance after the damage caused from 
Hurricane [da in September 2021 . The District did not post the required notice declaring an extreme emergency in 
the offic ial journal of the District 

Recommendation: 
We recommend the District familiarize itself with the Public Bid Law during emergency situations. 

Resolved: 
Fully 

This schedule was prepared by management. 
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A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNT ANT'S REPORT 
ON APPL YING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Livingston Parish Sewer District 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (CIC) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
(SAUPs) for the fiscal period January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 . Livingston Parish 
Sewer District's management is responsible for those CIC areas identified in the SAUPs. 

Livingston Parish Sewer District has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed 
are appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified 
procedures on the CIC areas identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period January 1, 2022 
through December 31, 2022. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the 
procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any 
other purpose. The procedures perfom1ed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this 
report and may not meet the needs of a ll users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for 
determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

1) Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the entity ' s written policies and procedures and observe whether they 
address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds 
and the entity's operations: 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

b) Purchasing, including ( l) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are added 
to the vendor list, (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions 
and purchase orders, (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law. 
and (5) documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

d) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
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completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions 
(e.g. , periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconcili ation to utility billing 
after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency 
fund forfeitme monies confirmation). 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving 
time and attendance records, including leave and ove1iime worked. and (3) approval 
process for employee rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate 
schedules. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) 
standard tem1s and conditions, (3) legal review, ( 4) approval process. and ( 5) 
monitoring process. 

g) Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (I) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and ( 4) 
required approvers. 

h) Credit Cards (and debit cards,fuel cards, purchase cards, if applicable), including 
(1) how cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation 
requirements, ( 4) required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage 
( e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42: 1111-1121 , (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system 
to monitor possible ethics violations, and ( 4) a requirement that documentation is 
maintained to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any 
changes to the entity's ethics policy. 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing 
disclosure/EMMA repo1iing requirements, (3 ) debt reserve requirements, and (4) 
debt service requirements. 

k) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups 
in a separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic 
testing/verification that backups can be restored, ( 4) use of anti virus software on all 
systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software 
patches/updates, and ( 6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to 
recover operations after a critical event. 

I) Prevention of Sexual Harassment, including R.S . 42:342-344 requirements for (1) 
agency responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training. and (3) 
annual reporting. 

No exceptions were found as a result of these procedures. 
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2) Board or Finance Committee 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as 
the board' s enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during 
the fiscal period, and 

1. Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or 
on a frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws. 
or other equivalent document. 

11. For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe 
whether the minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons 
on the general fund, quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, 
and semi-annual budget- to-actual, at a minimum, on all special revenue funds. 
Alternatively, for those entities reporting on the not-for-profit accounting model, 
observe that the minutes referenced or included.financial activity relating to public 
funds if those public funds comprised more than I 0% of the entity 's collections 
during the fiscal period. 

111. For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the 
unassigned fund balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative 
ending unassigned fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the 
minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a 
formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the general fu nd . 

1v. Observe whether the board/finance committee received written updates of the 
progress ofresolving audit finding(s) , according to management's corrective 
action plan at each meeting until the findings are considered fully resolved. 

No exceptions were found as a result of these procedures. 

3) Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and 
management' s representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the 
entity ' s main operating account. Select the entity's main operating account and random ly 
select 4 additional accounts ( or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month 
from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and 
reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that: 

1. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of 
the related statement closing date (e.g. , initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

11. Bank reconciliations include written evidence that a member of management or a 
board member who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed 
each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 
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u1. Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that 
have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if 
applicable. 

No exceptions were found as a result of these procedures. 

4) Collections (excluding electronic f unds transfers) 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money 
orders (cash) are prepared and management ' s representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select 5 deposit sites ( or all deposit sites ifless than 5). 

B. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for 
each deposit site ( e.g. , 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written 
policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if there are no written policies or 
procedures, then inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, 
and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that 

1. Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers; 

11. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for 
preparing/making bank deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible 
for reconciling collection documentation (e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the 
deposit; 

u1. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible fo r posting 
collection entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another 
employee/official is responsible for reconci ling ledger postings to each other and 
to the deposit; and 

1v. The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger 
and/or subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, is (are) 
not also responsible for collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies 
the reconciliation. 

C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all 
employees who have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy for theft 
was in force during the fiscal period. 

D. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected fo r Bank 
Reconciliations procedure #3A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits 
were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple 
deposits are made on the same day). Alternatively, the practitioner may use a source 
document other than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as 
a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain supporting 
documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

1. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 
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11. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related 
collection documentation to the deposit slip. 

m. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

1v. Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the 
collection location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from 
the collection location or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely 
in a locked safe or drawer). 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

No exceptions were found as a result of these procedures. 

5) Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty 
cash purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing oflocations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations ( or all locations if 
less than 5). 

9. For each location selected under procedure #SA above, obtain a listing of those employees 
involved with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and 
procedures relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and 
procedures, then inquire of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties 
are properly segregated such that 

1. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a 
purchase, and placing an order or making the purchase; 

11. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to 
vendors; 

111. The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from 
adding/modifying vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for 
periodically reviewing changes to vendor files; 

1v. Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or 
gives the signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for 
processing payments; and 

v. Only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic 
disbursement (release) of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), 
electronic funds transfer (EFT), wire transfer, or some other electronic means. 

[Note : Findings related to controls that constrain the legal authority of certain public officials 
(e.g. , mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality) should not be reported.] 

10. For each location selected under procedure #SA above, obtain the entity 's non-payroll 
disbursement transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and 
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obtain management 's representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 
disbursements for each location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and 

1. Observe whether the disbursement, whether by paper or electronic means, matched 
the related original itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates that 
deliverables included on the invoice were received by the entity, and 

11. Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g. , 
initial/date, electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under procedure #5B 
above, as applicable. 

11. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations 
procedure #3A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements ( or all 
electronic disbursements if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was 
(a) approved by only those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the 
entity ' s policy, and (b) approved by the required number of authorized signers per the 
entity 's policy. Note: If no electronic payments were made from the main operating 
account during the month selected the practitioner should select an alternative month 
and/or account for testing that does include electronic disbursements. 

Exception: 
The outside accountant responsible for processing payments can add or modify vendors in the 
accounting system. 

Management 's Response: 
Management will adopt a procedure requiring a document (cover sheet) to be al/ached to bills 
being paid each month. The document will require the board member that signs the disbursement 
check to also sign his approval along with the date regarding all vendor payments made by the 
automated payable system. The board will adopt a policy requiring the Chairman to implement an 
approval step whereby he reviews, signs, and dates his review of the bank statements and bank 
reconciliations provided on a monthly basis. 

6) Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards (Cards) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, 
and purchase cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names 
of the persons who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management' s 
representation that the li sting is complete. 

B. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards i f less than 
5) that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or 
combined statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank 
statement). Obtain supporting documentation, and 

a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined 
statement and supporting documentation ( e.g. , original receipts for credit/debit card 
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purchases, exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and 
approved, in writing ( or electronically approved) by someone other than the 
authorized card holder (those instances requiring such approval that may constrain 
the legal authority of certain public officials, such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act 
municipality, should not be reported); and 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected 
statements. 

C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #78 
above, excluding fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions ( or all transactions if less than 
10) from each statement, and obtain supporting documentation fo r the transactions ( e.g., 
each card should have 10 transactions subject to inspection). For each transaction, observe 
that it is supported by (I) an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was 
purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) 
documentation of the individual s participating in meals (for meal charges only). For 
missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and observe 
whether management had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a 
"missing receipt statement" that is subject to increased scrutiny. 

No exceptions were found as a result of these procedures. 

7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 
during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger 
is complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements and obtain the related expense 
reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as 
well as the supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected 

1. If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no 
more than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General 
Services Administration (www.gsa.gov); 

11 . If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased; 

111. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the 
business/public purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes 
the names of those individuals participating) and other documentation required by 
Written Policies and Procedures procedure # lA(vii) ; and 

1v. Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writ ing, by 
someone other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

No exceptions were found as a result of these procedures. 
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8) Contracts 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts fo r professional services, 
materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed 
during the fiscal period . Alternatively, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection 
source, such as an active vendor list. Obtain management 's representation that the listing 
is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, 
excluding the practitioner' s contract, and 

1. Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid 
Law ( e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law; 

11. Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if 
required by policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter); 

111. If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract 
terms provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in 
compliance with the contract terms (e.g. , if approval is required for any amendment, 
the documented approval) ; and 

1v. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, 
obtain the supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe 
that the invoice and related payment agreed to the tem1s and conditions of the 
contract. 

No exceptions were found as a result of these procedures. 

9) Payroll and Personnel 

A. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed duri ng the fiscal period and 
management' s representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or 
officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to 
authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials 
selected under procedure #9A above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation 
for the pay period, and 

1. Observe that all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance 
and leave (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory); 

11. Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected 
employees or officials; 

u1. Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the 
entity ' s cumulative leave records; and 
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1v. Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized 
salary/pay rate found within the personnel file. 

C. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during 
the fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly 
select two employees or officials and obtain related documentation of the hours and pay 
rates used in management's termination payment calculations and the entity ' s policy on 
termination payments. Agree the hours to the employee's or official 's cumulative leave 
records, agree the pay rates to the employee's or official 's authorized pay rates in the 
employee' s or official ' s personnel files , and agree the termination payment to entity policy. 

D. Obtain management' s representation that employer and employee portions of third-party 
payroll related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance 
premiums, garnishments, workers ' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any 
associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

No exceptions were found as a result of these procedures. 

10) Ethics 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure 
#9A obtain ethics documentation from management, and 

a. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employee/official 
completed one hour of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 
42: 1170; and 

b. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each 
employee and official were notified of any changes to the entity 's ethics policy 
during the fiscal period, as applicable. 

23 . Inquire and/or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by 
R.S. 42: 1170. 

No exceptions were found as a result of these procedures. 

11) Debt Service 

A. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period 
and management' s representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instruments 
on the listing, obtain suppo1iing documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission 
approval was obtained for each debt instrument issued as required by Article VII, Section 
8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

B. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fi scal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, 
inspect debt covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and 
payments, and agree actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt 
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covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by 
the debt covenants). 

No exceptions were found as a result of these procedures. 

12) Fraud Notice 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on 
the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the 
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which 
the entity is domiciled as required by R.S. 24 :523. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 
24:523. l concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public 
funds. 

No exceptions were found as a result of these procedures. 

13) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

A. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and 
report "We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

1. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its 
critical data (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel 
responsible for backing up critical data) and observe evidence that such backup (a) 
occurred within the past week, (b) was not stored on the government's local server 
or network, and ( c) was encrypted. 

11. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has tested/verified 
that its backups can be restored (if there is no written documentation, then inquire 
of personnel responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe 
evidence that the test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 
months. 

111. Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, 
and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
computers and observe while management demonstrates that the selected 
computers have current and active antivirus software and that the operating system 
and accounting system software in use are currently supported by the vendor. 

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees ( or all terminated employees ifless than 5) using 
the list of terminated employees obtained in procedure #9C. Observe evidence that the 
selected terminated employees have been removed or disabled from the network. 

lOI P age 



We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

14) Prevention of Sexual Harassment 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure 
#9A, obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe that 
the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of 
sexual harassment training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure 
on its website ( or in a conspicuous location on the entity 's premises if the entity does not 
have a website). 

C. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe 
that the report was dated on or before February 1, and observe that the report includes the 
applicable requirements of R .S . 42 :344: 

1. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the 
training requirements; 

11. Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

111. Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

1v. Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in 
discipline or corrective action; and 

v. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

No exceptions were found as a result of these procedures. 

We were engaged by Livingston Parish Sewer District to perform this agreed-upon procedures 
engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government 
Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review 
engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, 
respectively, on those CIC areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come 
to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of Livingston Parish Sewer District and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethjcal requirements related to our agreed-upon 
procedures engagement. 
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This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing perfo1med on those CIC areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Hebert Johnson & Associates, Inc. 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 
Albany, Louisiana 
June 21, 2023 
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